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Verbatim Transcript of Combatant Status Review Tribunal Hearing for IS'.'1 10024 

REPORTER: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDE!\T: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

REPORTER: 

PRESIDENT: 

OPENING 

On the record 

All rise. 

Remain seated and come to order. Go nhead. Recorder. 

This Tribunal is being conducle<l at 1328 March 10, 200 ; on board C.S. Naval 
Base Guantanamo Bav. Cuba. The following personnel are present: 
Captain (b)(6) United Slates Navy, President 
Lieutenant Colonel b) 6) • t..:nited States Air Force. Member 
Lieutenant Colonel (b)(6) United States Marine Corps. Member 
Lieutenant Colonel (b)(6) , United States Air F11rce, Personal 
Re pre sen ta the 
Language Analysis (b)(6) .+.--,...,..,,.,.---. ......... ..,.... 
Gunnery Sergeant (b)(6) l nited States Marine Corps. Reporter 
Lieutenant Colonel'-P!!~~)--"". United States Anny, Recorder 
Captain (b)(6) 1:; c ge Advocate member »fthe Tribunal. 

OATH SESSION 1 

All Rise. 

The Recorder will be sworn. Do you, Lieutenant Colonel j(b)(6) I 
solemnly swear that you will faithfully pcrfonn the duties as Recorder assigned in 
this Tribunai so help you God'' 

I do. 

The Reponer will now be :;worn. The Recorder will administer the oath. 

()o you Gunnery Sergeant l(b)(6) ~wear or affinn that y<•u will faithfully 
<lis~:harge )'Our duties as Reporter assigned in this Tribunal ro help you God? 

I do. 

The Translator will be sworn. 
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RECORDER: Do you swear or affinn that you will faithrully perform 1he duties ofTranslaror in 
the case now in hearing so help you God? 

TRANSLATOR: I do 

PRESIDEN I': We will take a brief recess now in order in lo bring Detainee into the room. 
Recorder note the date and time. 

RECORDER: The time is l ·10 pm hours on 10 March 2007 This Tribunal is in now in recess. 
!Tht: Tribunal recessed at 1330, I 0 March 2007 The members withdrew from the 
hearing room. I 

RECORUER: 

PRESIOENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAfNEF.: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRF.STDENT: 

l' IU~SIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

CONVENING AUTHORITY 

/\II Rii;c. 
(The Tribunal reconvened and the members entered the room at 1334, 10 March 
2007.) 

This hearing will come to ordcr. Please be scaled. 

Before we begin, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. I understand you speak and 
understand English. Is that correct? 

l Dc1aincc notls his head in affinnati\'c]. 

Alright. Are you comfonable in continuing in English or would you like 
evcr:1hing translated in Arabic? 

Everything in English but ifl have a problem the linguis: will help me. 

We will proceed in English. If you indicate to me 1hat yN1 would like something 
translated we will go ahead and do that. Alright? 

This rrihunnl is convened by order of the Direcior, ComhatMt Status Review 
1 ribunals under the provisions of his Order of22 February 2007. 

This Tribunal wiil determine whether Khalid Sheikh Muhammad meets the 
criteria to be designated as an enemy combatant against the United States or its 
coalition partners or otherwise meets the criteria to be de,;ignated as an enemy 
combatant. 

OATH SESSION 2 

The members of this Tribunal shall now be sworn 1\11 ri~e . 
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Do you swear or affirm that you will faithfully perform your duties as a member 
of this Tribunal ; that you will impartially examine and inquire into the matter now 
before you according to your conscience, and the laws and regulations provided: 
that you will make such findings of fact and conclusion~ as arc supported by the 
evidence presented: that in determining those facts, you will use your profossional 
knowledge, best judgment. and common sense: and that you will make such 
findings as arc appropriate according to the best of your understanding of the 
rules. regulations, and laws govcming this proceeding. and guided by your 
concept of justice so help you Uod? 

I do 

The Recorder will now administer the oath to the Person.ii Representative 

Do you s~ear or affirm that you will faithfully perform the duties of Personal 
Representative in this Tribunal so help you God? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: l do. 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESmENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

i>RESIDEN r: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

Please be seated. 

The Recorder. Reporter, and Translator have previously ..,een sworn. 

EXPLANATION OF PROCEEDINGS 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you arc hereby advised that the following applies 
during this hearing; 

You may be present at all optm sessions of the Tribunal However, if you hecomt! 
disorderly. you will be removed from the hearing. and the Tribunal will continue 
to hear evidence in your ahsenee. 

You may not be compelled to testify at this Tribunal. H11wever. you may testify if 
you wish to do so. Your testimony can he under oath or unsworn. 

You may have the assistance of a Perronnl Reprcsentatiw. at the hearing. Your 
assigned Personal Rcpre~cntative is present. 

You may present evidence to this Tribunal. including the testimony of witnesses 
who ::ire reasonably availahlc and whose testimony is rekvant to this hearing. 
You may question witnesses testifying at the Tribum1I. 
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PRESIDENT: 

PRF.SiOENT· 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

OETAINCE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PERSONA!. 
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You may examine documents or statements otforcd mto t:vidcnee other than 
classified infonnation. Bowevc:r, certain documents may be panially masked for 
sccuriry reasons. 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. do you understand this procl·ss? 

Yes. If! have question can I ask you? 

Y cs, you may. 

t\bout the testimony which I ask about the witnesses. 

Yes. I'm going to address the witnesses shortly. So. if y(lu will bear with us I will 
lake thm up in a few moments. 

Okay. 

no you have any questions concerning the Tribunal procl'ss? 

Okay by me. 

PRESENTATION OF UNCLASSIFIED INFORMATION 

Personal Representative. please provide the Tribunal with the Detainee Election 
Fonn 

REPRESENTATIVE: I am handing the: Tribunal the Detainee Election Fonn. which was previously 
marked as Exhibit 0 -a. 

PRESIDENT-

PRF.SJOENT: 

RECORDER: 

Alright, the Tribunal has received Exhibit D-a that indicates th<: Detainee wants to 
participate in the Tribunal and wants the assi:nancc of tlw l'crsonal 
R<:prcscntativc. 

RECORDER PRESENTS UNCLASSIFIED 

Recorder, please provide the Tribunal with the unclassifo.:d evidt!nce. 

I am handing the Tribunal what has previously been marked as Exhibit R-1. the 
unclassified summary or the evidence that relates to this Detainee 's status as an 
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enemy combatant. A translated copy of this exhibit was provided to the Personal 
Representative in advance of this hearing for presentation lo the Detainee. In 
ndditinn, I am handing to the Tribunal Che following unclassified exhibits, marked 
as Exhihit R-2. Copic.~ of these Exhibits have previous!~ heen provided to the 
Personal Representative. [Documents presented to Tribunal! 

Recorder, please read the unclassified summary of evidence for the record. But 
before you proceed. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, let me n:mind you that you must 
not comment on this evidence al this time. You will be :-irovided with an 
opportunity shortly to provide any comments that you would like. Recorder, 
please proceed. 

The following facts support the determination that thi: Dl·Wim:e is an enemy 
combatant: 

Paragraph a. On the morning of 11 Septemhcr 2001. four airliners traveling t1ver the United States 
were hijacked. The flights hijacked were: American Airlines Flight 11, Unitt«l Airlines Flight L 75, 
American Airlines Flight 77, and United Airlines Flight 93. At approximate!:• 8:46 a.m., American 
Airlim:s Flight 11 crashed into tht: North Tower of the World Trade Center, n:sulting in the collapse of 
the tower at approximately I 0:25 a.m. At approximately 9:05 a.m., United Airlines Flight 175 crashed 
into the South Tower of the World Trade Center, resulting in t11e collapse of the tower at 
approximately 9:55 a.m At approximately 9:37 n.m., American Airlines Flight 77 crashed into the 
southwest side of the Pentagon in Arlington. Virginia. At approximately I O:f13 a.m., United Airlines 
Flight 93 crashed in Stoney Creek Township. Pennsylvania. These crashes and subsequent damage lo 

the World Trade Center and the Pentagon resulted in the deaths of2.972 pcrs11ns in New York, 
Virginia. and Pennsylvania. 

Paragraph h. The Detainee served as the head of the al Qaida military comm1ttce and was Usama bin 
Laden's principal al Qaida operative who directed the 11 September 2001 attacks in the United States. 

Paragraph c. ln an interview with an al Jazeera reporter in June 2002, the DetJince slated he was the 
head of the al Qaida military committee. 

Pardgraph d. A computer hard drive seized during the capture cf the Detainel· contained information 
about the four airplanes hijacked on 11 September 2001 including code name:-. airline company, !light 
number. target, pilot name and background information. and names of the hijackers. 

Paragraph e. A computer hard drive seized dunng the capture of the Detainee contained photographs 
of 19 individuals identified as the I I September 2001 hijackers. · 
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Paragraph f. A computer hard drive sei;r.ed during the capture of the Detainee contained a document 
that listed th\! pilot license fees for \1ohamrnad Atta and biographies for somt· of the 11 September 
200 I hijackers. 

Paragraph g. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained images of 
passports and au image of Mohammad Atta. 

Paragraph h. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained transcripcs of 
chat sessions belonging to at least one oflhe 11 September 2001 hijackers. 

Paragraph i. The Detainee directed an individual lo travel lo the United State~ to case targets for a 
second w·..i.vc of attacks. 

Paragraph j . A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee ~ontaincd three letters 
from Usruna bin Laden. 

Paragmph k. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained spreadsheets 
that describe money assistance to families of known al Qaida members. 

Paragrdph I. The Detaincc's name was on a list in a computer seized in conncct1on with a threat.to 
United States airlines. United States embassies and the Pope. 

Paragraph m. The Detainee wrote the hojinka plot. the airline bomb plot which was later found on his 
nephew Ramzi Yousefs computer. 

Paragraph n. The bojinka plut is also known as the Manila air investigation. 

Paragraph o. The Manila air investigation uncovered the Detainee coospirt.-d with others to plant 
explosive devicC!> aboard American jetliners while those aircraft were schedu1ed to be airborne and 
loaded with passengers on their way to the United States 

Paragraph p. The Detainee was in charge of and funded an attack against United States military vessels 
heading to thi: port of Djibouti. 

Paragraph q. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a letter to the 
United Arab Emirates threatening attack if their govemment continued to help the United States. 

Paragraph r. During the capture of the Detainee, information used exclusively by al Qaida operational 
managers to communicate with operatives wa.-; found. 

Paragraphs. The Detainee received funds from Kuwaiti-ba-;cd fslamic extrcm:st groups and delivered 
the funds lo al Qaida members. 

-7~:-~n· 
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Paragraph t. A compukr hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a dncumcnt 
that summarized operational procedures and training requirements of an al Qaida cell. 

Paragraph u. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Dctaine~ contained a list of killed 
and wounded al Qaida martyrs. 

And lastly. Paragraph v. Passport photographs of al Qaida operatives were se!zed during lhe capture of 
the Detainee. 

IU:CORDER: Sir, this concludes I.he swnmary of unclassified evidence-

PRESIDEKf: Very well . 

PRESJOEl\=T: Personal Representative, dvcs the Detainee have any evidence to present to lhis 
Tribunal? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESEl\T ATJVE: Yes. sir. I am handing to the Tribunal the following unclassified exhibits 

marked as Exhibits D-b through D-d. Copies of these exhibits have been 
previously provided to the Recorder. !Docwncnts presented to Tribunal) 

PRESIDE1'T: Exhibit D-b appears to be a statement that the 11ctaincc has provided. 

PERSONA!. 
REPRESE~TATIVE: Yes, Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. And Exhibit D-c contains hand written notes that appear to be Arabic and 
English as well as the typed version of that. Is that correct? 

PER SOI\' AL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes, Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Alril!ht. And D-d is a written statt:ment regarding alleged abuse or treatment that 
the Detainee received. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Y cs. Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. We will go into I.hose shortly. 

T~ ':~(I/. 
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PRESIOENl : 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENl : 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT· 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RF.CORDER: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT· 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDlZR: 

PRESIDENT. 

J>RESIOENT: 

PERSONAL 

(b}(1) 
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Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. you may now make an oral 'tatement to the Tribunal, 
and you have the assistance of your Personal Representative in doing so. Do you 
wish to make an oral statement to this Tribunal? 

I le will start, the Personal Representative; PR will read then later I will comment. 

Ver.~ wdl. you may proceed. 

Sir. would you hold one mnment? 

Yes 

Ah. before the Detainee makes a statement. ah. I'd like h.• ah. 

Question of tht: oath? 

Ah. :to sir. 

Concerning classified evidence. 

Very well. 

Do }OU have any further evidence to present at this time. Recorder? 

Mr. Prcsidl·n:, I have no further unclassified evidence fo~ the Tribunal but I 
respectfully request a closed Trihunal stssion :nan appropriate time to present 
class11icd evidence rcle..,ant to this Dctainee's status as an enemy combatant. 

Very well. your request for a closed scssmn 1s granted and will he takt.'TI up in due 
course. 

You may procet!d, l'R 

REPRFSENTATIVE: The: Dc:tainc1: rt!sponds to the unclassified summary 01 evidence with the 
following key points. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: "Some paragrctphs under paragraph number 1. lead sentence nrc not related to 

the context or meaning of the aforementioned lead scnrcnce For example, 
paragraph 3-a is onl}' infonnation from news or a historical account of events 
on 11 September 200 I. and note with no specific linkage being made in this 
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paragraph 10 me or the definition of Enemy Combatant. As another example. 
sub-paragraph J-n makes no linkage to me or to the definition of Enemy 
Combatant." 

DETAfi'<EE: Arc they following along? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Ah, they they have that in front of them for reference. 

PRESIDENT: Yes. 

DETAINEE: Okay. 

PF.RSONAI. 
REPRESENTATIVE. Second main point 'There arc two false statements in the Summary of 

1-.vidence. Sub-paragraph 3-c is false . I never stated lo the Al Jazeera reporter 
that l was the head of the al Qaida military committee. /\lso, sub-paragraph 3-s is 
false l did not receive any funds from Kuwait " 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Point number 3. ·'Tin:rc is an unfair 'stacking of evidence' in the way the 

Summary of Evidence is structured. In other words. there arc several sub­
paragraphs under pare01-paragmph 3 which should be C<'mbined into om: sub­
paragraph to avoid creating the false perception that there are more allegations or 
statcmcnLo; against me specifically than there actually art' . For example, sub­
paragraphs 3-m through 3-o, which pertain to the boJinka plot should be 
combined into one paragraph. ac; should paragraphs 3-a through 3-h, which 
pertain to 9111." 

PERSOI"Al 
REPRESF.NTA TIVE: Lastly, my name is misspelled in the Summary of Evidence. It should be S-h­

a-i-k-h or S-h-e-i-k-h, but not S-h-a-y-k-h, as it is in the , ubject line. 

PRESIDENT: Would you like to add anything to that, Khalid Sheikh :'vluhrunmad? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENT AT! VE: Final statl'mcnt. 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

No, I just want to ask about witnesses. 

Okay. ah, let's finish with these then l will get to the witnesses. 

TS.'/SCI/ 
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DETAINEE: Okay. 

PRESIDENT: Try lo keep ii in order. 

PK.ES! DENT: You want to continue. PR? Do you have have anolher statement? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: That concludes this Dctaincc's response 10 1he. ah, undnssiftcd summary of 

evidence. sir. 

!'RESIDENT: Oh. 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

Rl:CORDER: 

PRESIDENT. 

PRl:::SI DENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESinf.NT: 

PRESIDENT: 

CALLING OF WITNESSES 

We will now allow for 1hc calling of witnesses. All witnesses called before this 
Tribunal may be questioned by the De1ainee if present. tl:e Personal 
Reprcsentati\'e. the Recorder. and the Tribunal Members 

Docs the Recorder have any witnesses to prcscnrl 

Nu. sir. 

Alright. 

horn the Detainee Election Fonn and 1 was informed earlier that the Detainee 
requ1:sted the presence of two witnesses to testify here toJay. Ramzi bin al-Shibh 
and Mustafa Hawsawi. The Detainee believes the witnc.;ses can provide 
testimony rcla1ed to the Dclaincc's actions specified in 1hc unclassified summary 
of the cvidcm:c. 

I have had the opponunit)· to review the request for witm·sses and I have made 
some findings and I'm going to place them on the record now and when l 
conclude that. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you may rcspc>nd to that if you'd like. 

First the request for Ram:i:1 bin al-Shib. the proffer of the testimony from the 
Detuincc was that Rarnzi is alleged to have been present during the al Jazccru 
interview in June 2002 during which it is said the Detaim•e claimed 10 be head of 
al Qaida Military Conunittce. The Dcraincc claims he never stated that, to be the 
hea<l of the Military Commillec:. during lhe inrcrview and stntcs that Ram:ci. if 
called. can cunfim1 this. 

This witness is not relevant in the President's view for Ult' following reasons. In 
lhe totalily of the circumstances and given the nature and qunlity of the other 
unclassified evidence. the Dctaincc's alleged statements as reported in al Jazeera 

rsi1sc1+-
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urc of limited value and negligible relevancy to the issue • 1f comhatant status. As 
such. any corroboration or contradiction by the proffered witness is not relevant. 
The creditability determinations with regard 10 R-2. which is the al Jazeera anicle. 
can he made hy the Tribunal without the proffered testimony . As such. the 
Dctainee's request for 1he production of that witness is d.:nicd. 

PRESIDENT: i\s ll' the request for Mustafa Hawsawi. ah. it is proffered that Hawsawi, if called. 
could testify that the computer/hard drive rc!Crcnced in the unclassified summary 
was nm this Dctaince's property and that the place of the Detainec's capture was 
not the house of the Detainee. In the President's view this testimony is not 
relevant to the issues regarding the Dctainec's capture or his combatant status for 
the following reasons. 

PRESIDFl'\T: Whether the Detainee had actual legal title or ownership 11f the computer/hard 
drive or the house where the capture took place is irrclcvJnt to the dctcmlination 
of the l>etaincc's struus as an enemy combatant. Based <·n the proffor, if true, 
1-lnwsawi's te:;timony will not provide relevant infomli:lti11n. ·n1t: issue of 
ownership, while of some interest. is not relevant to su:1tu~. What is rclcvWlt is 
possession. usage. connection and presence. Hawsawi's testimony will not speak 
to any relevant information in regard to such points. As such. the request for the 
production of that witness is denied. 

PRESIDENT: If you would like to respond to that, I'll hear you. 

l>ETArNEE: Most of these fot:ts which be written arc related to this hard drive. And more than 
eleven of these facts arc related to this computer. Other things arc which is very 
old even nobody can hring any witnesses for that as you wrinen here if it will be 
ah a value for you for the witness near by you will do it. niis computer is not for 
me. Is for Hawsawi himself. So I'm saying l need r laws.iwi because me and him 
we both bet:n arrested day. Same way. So this computer is from him long time. 
And also the pmbkm we arc not in coun and we are not : udge nnd he is not my 
lawyer but the procedure has hecn written reported and the way has mostly a<; 
certain charged against me; tell him, [Arabic Phrase). 

TRANSLATOR: [Translating] They arc only accusations 

DETAINEE: So \lccusations. And the accusations, they arc as you put for yourself ah definition 
for em!my combatant there arc also many definitions for :hat accusation of fact or 
charges that has been written for any ah. I Ara hie Phrase I 

TRANSLATOR: [Tran~laringl Person is accus1..-d. 
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So. if I been accused then if you wanl to put facts againsl me also the definition 
for thc!>c facts. If you now read number N now what is written the bojinka plot. 
Is known many lead invesrigation it is not related to anything facts to be against 
me. So when f said computer hard drive' hard disk. same thing. All these point 
only one witness he can say yes or not cause he is this computer is under his 
possession him computer. And also specifically if he said Mohammad Alta 

picture been this hard drive. I don't think this should acel·pted. There arc many 
I 00 thousand Americans who have a lot of picture on their computer. You cannot 
say I find Muhammad Atta on your computer then you U't: this fact against you. 
Or you find any files in your computer to be what about it's mine, it's not my 
computer. If this witness. he will state that this known 1111d here that has been 
ninety percent of what is written is wrong. And for Ram1.i, for reporter in 
Ja.7.ecra, he claimed that I state this one and you know tht' media man. I low they 
are fashionable . What they mean in their own way in a \\hole different way. 
They just wrote it so he say I state. But I never stated and I don't have any 
witnesses and witness arc available here al Guantanamo. He is l.>ctainee. He was 
with me. Which he been mostly in all my interview with him. Mc and them, 
there was three person. me and Ramzi and this reporter. '\o if you not believe me. 
not believe him. believe my witness RllI1l7.i. Then he's \\hilt he state the reporter 
most is false. I nut denying that rm not an enemy combatant about this war but 
T"m denying the report. It not being wrinen in the prOJ>l:r way. Which is really 
facts and mostly just hcing gathered many infonnation. Uencral information that 
fonn in way of doing. to use in facts against me. 

I have heard and understood your argwm:nt. Jn order for me to make my 
determinations regarding the production of witnesses I first have to believe that 
they are relevant for the rea.~om; that I have staled. For thl· reasons I have stated, I 
do not bdievc they arc relevant. Whether or not they may he available here on 
Guantanamo. is a second decision lo be made, but only if I decide they arc 
relevant. l have heard your argurnents. I noted them. ! IPwcvcr. my ruling 
stands. 

The Recorder has no witnesses, is that my understanding·· 

:--.io. sir. 

And there arc no other approved witnesses to taken up. Ah. we will take a brief 
moment to rt:vicw the w1classilicd evidence that we received so far and then we 
will pick back up in the proceeding. 

If I might ask a 411estiun real 4uick of the PR. This is the entire translation of the 
hand written notes? 

ISti~Cli 
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T~::SCl: 

PERSONAL 
REPRFSENTATIVF.: Yeah. ll1c hand \>.trittcn notes are the Detainee is on yellow. 

MEMBER: Yes 

PERSONAi. 
REPRESENTATIVE: an<l, then the next set of note~. hand wrillcn notes. arc the Linguist's lrdnslation 

and then the final hanl copy printed that's, ah, that... 

MEMBER: Type written. 

PERSONAi. 
REPRESENTATIVE: Typed from Linguist':; notes. 

MEMBER: Type from Linguist's translations. Okay. 

PR.ESrDENT: Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. I did not offer you an oath early because I was 
informed by the Pcrsonai Representative that you would be making some 
statement latcr on in these proceedings rdevant to the truthfulneS.'\ or your 
comments. So. if you would like to take an oath l would administer one to you 
hut I did understand that you going to make a statement. 

DETAI'NEE· In the final statcmt:nl. I will explain why then. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. Thank you. {Tribunal pauses to ri.>view 0-a thru D-d) 

MEMBER: St:cn those. 

TRANSLATOR: Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Yes. 

TRANSi.A rOR: lie wanted me to translate a Koranic verse on the spot. 

PRESIDENT: I will permit it. 

TRANSL/\ TOR: Thank you. 

Tll.i\NSLATOR: Can I ask him for clarification':> 

PRESIDENT: Yi::;. 

PRESIDENT: Do you need a few more mlimcnLc;, Trruislator? 

.·Si.'SCJ..-
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TRANSLATOR: Yes. sir. about thirty scwnds. 

PRESlDE~T: Go ahead and take your time 

TRANSLATOR: Would you me to read the English translation after he re.uJ Arabic verse or would 
like him to read it. 

PRESIDENT: Yvu want to save that for later" 

TRANSL/\ TOR: !Nods hcadl 

PRESIDENT: Alright. 

PRESIDFNT: Let me take up a few things that have come up as based •m my review ofthesc 
documents that have been provided to us so far. 0-d, appears to be a \a,Titten 
statement regarding certain treatment that you claim to have received at the hands 
of agents of the United Stated government as you indicaicd from the time of your 
capture in 2003 up until before coming here to Guantanamo in September 2006. 

PRESIDENT: Is that correct? 

DETAfNEF.: Ye$. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. 

PRESIDi~NT: Nov.:. I haven'! seen any s1ah:mems m the evidence we n·ceive so far that claim to 
come from you other than acknowledging whether you were or 1101 the head of the 
Mili1ary Comm1ttcc Were any statements that you made a~ the result of ony of 
1he treatment Lhat you received during that time frame frqm 2003 to 2006? Did 
you make those statements because of the treatment you receive from these 
people? 

DETAINl-:F. Statement for whom? 
(b )( 1) 

PRESIDENT: To any of 1hcsc interrogators. (b)(3) NatSecAct 

DETAfNEE: CIA peoples Yes. At the beginning when 1hcy transfe1 :c<l me to 
After they shifted me to 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 

man who wa:; torturing me: he :;pent lung lime with me. •-Jc :;1uycd with me two 
ve;m;. Later we became friends and I told him about all these procedures a ainst 
American constitution law. 'Ibis what I understand he tuld me: you urc not 
American and you arc not on American soil. So you cannot ask about the 
Constitution. 

(b )( 1) 
1b)(3) NatSecAct 
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PRESIDENT: What rm trying to get at is any statement that you made was it because of this 
treatment, to use your word, you claim tonure. Do you make any statements 
hccau~e of that? 

TRANSLATOR: Sir. for clarification. 

PR.ESIDENT: Can you translate it? 

TRANSi.A r0R : I will translate in Arabic. 

l'RESll).ENT: Yes. (b)I I) 

TRANSLATOR: [Translating above] (b)l3) NatSecAct 

DcfAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

I ah cannot remember now because three years daily askmg questjon. I be under 
qucslioning so many statement which been some of them I make up stories just 
location URI.. Where is he" l don't know. Then he tort..irc me. TI1en I said yes. 
he 1:; in this area or this is al Qaida which I don't him. I -;aid no, they tonurc me. 
Docs he know you? I say don't him but how come he know you. I told him I'm 
senior man. Many people they know me which I don' t them. I ask him even ifhc 
kne" George Bush. He said, yci; I do. I le don' t know y11u that not means its 
false. Then finally I said yes I know him. Took me mon· then twelve persons. I 
said yc:s I know him. Which I don't him the some more. The orocedurc thev were 
given me picture for peoples which were in 
I mean CIA camps with Detainee. ln the bcgiMing alm<,st the four month hard 
time this time I. But later they did same thing because I transferred hard time 
then even I not rem1..-mbcr the ictures. I said y~s or not. nus 1 said. 

Alright, I undeTStand. 

Is there anything you would like to correct, amend, modify or explain to us from 
whnt you said back then? 

I wunt to just it i!' not related enemy combatant but f'm saying for you to be 
careful with people. Thul you huve clnssificd and wtclu.s:.1ficd facts. My opinion 
to be fair with people. 8ecausc when I say, I will not n:gret when I say I'm 
enemy combatant. I did or not I know tJ1cre arc other hut there arc many 
Detainees which you receive classified against them maybe. maybe not take away 
from me for many Detainees false witncssci:. This only advice. 

So you arc uware that other. .. 

Yes. 
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PRRSIOENT 

DETAINEE: 

PRF.SIDE~T: 

DET A INF.E: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDE~T: 

DETAJNEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

l'RESID.EN I': 

DETAINEl:: 

PRl::.S!f)ENT: 

DETAINEE: 

(b )(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

People made false statement as a result of this'.' 

I <li<l also 

lJh huh. 

I told him. I know him yes. There arc and I.hey are. No1 even you show me. This 
I don't know him I never met him at all. So, unclassified which is both classified 
and unclassified so this is you know him you don 't know him. You have to be 
fair with people. There are many many people which they have never been pan 
of 1he Taliban. Afghanistan there havt: been many peop:1: arrested for example 
people who have been arrested af1er October 200 I after make attack against 
Afghanistan many of them just arrive after they don't what has happen. When 
Russian came to Afghanistan they folt they went back but they did anything with 
Taliban and ;ti Qaida then came after that. I don't know why it was younger 
people same thing for t\.fghanis people they show Afghanis people:. I will give 
c.:xample one. His name is Sayed Habib. This I remember. Him they found his 
name in my notes and I told them this note is old note and have people which 
even before al Qaida I know. And he is not. I le is one of my students and the 
Russian times and I don"t know him. Then they show me his picture. He had 
been stripped and hanged and lhcy said this man he said 1 labib. I told he is not al 
Qaida. After six months they show his pictw-c again. Th.:y ask do you know him. 
did not release him. Then they told me he states he never saw you from nmety 
four. I said that is right. I never met him after ninety four. This one is example. 
:vfany people they show pictures which face J know but don't them because I was 
under pressure. Then I said ye ... . 

Alright. 

Now what. 

For me nothing wluch was recorded. For which is written here is not related 

I understand. 

I do note that in one ot' the exhibits you indicate you arc not under any pressure or 
dure~o; today. Is that com:ct? 

That is about I'm hearing 1oday. Ye:.. 

Sc> anything. 

Some of this information. I not state it to them. 

~i!SCh', 
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PRESIDENT: 

DETATNEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDEJ\:T: 

DErAINEE 

PRESIDE)';T: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PERSOJ\AL 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

The infonnation that you are telling us today. so, we are dear. You do not believe 
you arc under any pressure or threat or duress to speak tll us today. is that correct'! 

Yes. that's correct. 

Alright. 

Now what you have told us about your previous treatment is on the record of 
these proceeding now and will be reponed for any investigation that may be 
appropriate. Also, we will consider what you have told •JS in making our 
dctcnnination regarding your enemy combatant status. 

I hope you will take care of other Detainees with what I said. It's up to you. 

I will do as I've said. I'll set: to it that it is reported. 

Alnght. At this point, we arc going to go into the final statement but I do want lo 
givt: the opportunity to the Recorder. PR, and Tribunal member to ask questions if 
they would like. So. what will do is proceetl then to the Detainee's final 
statement and then I'll have a question and answer sessi<'n following that. Alright 
just give me a moment. 

Alright. 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, this concludes the presentation of unclassified 
information to the Tribunal. We are about to conclude the unclassified portion of 
the hearing. Do you wish to now make any final statcml·nt to the Tribunal? You 
have the assistance of your PR. 

I make a two part. Maybe he will read then I will go als1>. 

Very well. You may continue. 

REPRESENTATIVE: Mr. President. the Detainee has asked me to read his final statement 10 the 
Tribunal with the understanding he may interject or add :.tatements if he needs to. 
to correct what [ say. According to the Detainee: 

"I hcrchy admit and affirm without duress to the following: 

1. I swore Bay'aa1 (i.e .. allegiance) to Sheikh Usarna Bin Laden to conduct Jihad of self and 
money, and also llijr<1h (i.e .. expatriation to any location in the world where Jihad is required). 

2. 1 was a member of the Al Qaida Council. 

(b }( 1) 
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3. I was the Media Operation:; Director for Al-Sahab. or 'The Clouds,' under Dr Ayman 1\1-
Zawahiri. Al-Sahab is the media outlet that provided Al-Qaida-spons•1red infonnation to Al 
Jazeera. Four. •· 

OET AINF.E: [speaking inaudihly t<• Personal Representative] 

PRESIDE:-.J I": Please tell. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: In other channels or other media outlcLo;. 

PRJ::SIDE'.'ff: Thank }'OU. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: lcontinuingj "4. J was lhc Operational Director for Sheikh Usama Bin Laden 

for the organizing, planning, follow-up, and cxccution of the 9/11 Operation under the Military 
Commander, Sheikh Abu Hafs Al-Ma'lri Subhi Abu Sinah. 

5. I was the Military Operational Commandcr for all foreign operations around the world under 
the direction of Sheikh Usama Bin I.adcn an<l Dr. Ayman Al-Zawahu1 

6. Twas directly in charge, after the death of Sheikh Abu Hafs Al-Ma<;ri Subhi Abu Sittah, of 
managing and following up on the Cell for the Production of Biologitdl Weapons. such as 
anthrax and others, and following up on Dirty Uomb Operations on American soil. 

7. I was Emir (i.e. , commander) of Bt:it Al Shuhada (i.e., the \tlartyrs' H11use) in the state of 
Kandahar. Afghanistan, which housed the 9!11 hijackers. There I was responsible for their 
training and readiness for the c:rncution of the 9111 Operation. Also. I hereby admit and affim1 
without duress that I was a responsible participant, principal planner. trainer, financier (via the 
Military Council Treasury), executor. and/or a personal participant in •he following: 

I . I was responsible for the 1993 World Trade Center Operation. 
2. I was responsihle for the 9!11 Operation, from A to Z. 
3. I dccapitaled with my blessed right hand the head of the American Jew, Daniel Pearl, in 

the city of Karachi. Pakistan. For those who would like to confirm. there arc pictures of 
me on the Internet holding his head. 

4. I w;t:; responsible for the Sh01:.• Bomhcr Operation to down two American airplanes. 
5. I was responsible for the Filka Island Operation in Kuwait that killed two American 

soldiers. 
6. l was responsible for the bomhing of a nightclub in Bali, Indonesia. which was 

frequented by Rritish and Australian nationals. 
7. I was responsible for planning, training, survcymg. and financing the ~cw (or Second) 

Wave attacks against the following skyscrapers after 9/11 : 
a. I .ihrary Tower, California. 
b. Sear$ T(lwcr. Chicagu. 
c. Plaza Bank. Washington state. 

·1 S1tSCI/· 
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d Thi! Empire State Building, New York C:ity. 
~ I was responsible for planning, financing, & follow-up of Operations lo destroy 

American military vessels and oil tankers in I.he Straights of Hunnuz, the Straights of 
Gibralter. and the Port of Singapore. 

9. T was responsible for planning. training. surveying, and tinanc:ng for the Operation to 
bomb and destroy the Panama Canal. 

l 0. I was responsible for surveying and financing fo r the assassination of several fonner 
American Presidents. including President Carter. 

11 . I was responsible for surveying. planning. and financing for the.: bombing of suspensmn 
bridges in Ne"' York. 

12. I was responsible for pl:mninf! to destroy the Scars T uwer by owning a !Cw fuel or oil 
tanker trucks beneath it or around it. 

13. r was responsible for planning, surveying. and financing for the operation to destroy 
I !cathrow Airport, the C~na.ry Wharf Building, and Rig Ben OP British soil. 

14. 1 was responsible for planning. surveying. and financing for the destruction of many 
night clubs frequented by American and British citizens on Thuiland soil. 

15. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the dcstructi.,n llfthc New York 
Stock Exchange and· other financial targecs after 911 I. 

16. 1 was responsible for planning. financing. and surveying for the destruction of buildings 
in the Israeli city of Elat by using airplanes leaving from Saudi Arabia 

17. I wao; responsible for planning. surveying, and financing for the.: destruction of 
American embassies in Indonesia, Australia. and Japan. 

I 8. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destruct•· in of the Israeli embassy 
in India. Azerbaijan, the Philippines. and Australia. 

19 I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destrueti .. m of an Israeli ·El-Al' 
Airlines flight on Thailand soil departing from Bangkok Airpl'n. 

20. I was responsible for sending several Mujahadcen into Israel to conduct surveillance to 
hit several strategic targets deep in Israel. 

21 . I wac; responsible fur the bombing of the hotel in Mombusa that is frequented hy Jewish 
travelers via El-Al airlines. 

22 . I was responsible for launching a Russian-made SA-7 surfacc-ro-air missile on El-Al or 
other Jewish airliner departing fmm Mombasa. 

23. I was rcsponsiblt: for planning and surveying to hit American t.trgets in South Korea. 
such us American military bases and a few night clubs frcqucn:cd by American 
soldiers. 

24 . I was responsible for financial. excuse me. I was responsible for providing linancial 
support to hi1 American, Jewish, and British targets in Turkey 

25. I was responsible for surveillance needed to hit nuclear power ;llants lhat generate 
electricity 10 sever.ii U.S. states. 

26. I was rcspcmsiblc for planning. surveying, and financing to hit \JATO I lcadquarters in 
Europe. 
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27 I was n:sponsiblc for the rlarming and surveying needed to execute the Bojinka 
Operation. which wns designed to down twelve American airrlancs full of passengers. 
I personally monitored a round-trip. Manila-to-Seoul. Pan i\m night. 

28. I was responsible for the nssnssination attempt against President Clinton durinf!, his visit 
to the Philippines in 1994 or 1995. 

29. r was responsible for the assassination allempt against Pope fohn Paul the second while 
he was visiting the Philippines." 

DETAINEE. l was not rcsponsihle. but share. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESEN1 A l'IVF: I shared responsibility. I will restate number twenty r:mc. 

29. ··1 shared responsibility for the a'>sassination ancmpt against P•)PC John Paul the second 
while he was visiting the Philippines. 

30. I was resporn;ible for the training and financing for the assassi:iation of Pakis1an 's 
President Musharaf. 

31 . l was rcsponsibk· for the attempt to destroy an American oil Ct •mpw1y owned by the 
Jewish former Secretary l)f State. Henry Kissinger, on the Island of Sumatra. 
Indonesia." 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Sir. that concludes the .,.,,Tittcn ponion of the Detainee·s final statcmcn1 and as 

he has alluded to earlier he has some additional commcn·s he would like to make. 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

Alright. Hefurc you proceed, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. the ~1ah:rmmt that was 
just read by the Personal Representative. were those yow words? 

BEGIN DETAINEE ORAL STATEMENT 

Yes. And I want lo add some of this one just for some wrilication. h like some 
operations before I join al Qaida. Before I remember al <.,?aida which is related to 
Bojinka Operation J went to destination involve to us in •>4. 95. Some Operations 
which means out of al Qaida. Ifs like beheading Daniel Pearl. It's not rdated to 
al Qaida. It was shared in Pakistani. Other group, Mujahadccn. The story of 
Daniel Pearl. because he stated for the Pakistanis, group •hat he was working with 
the hoth. His mission was in Pakistan to track about Richard Reed trip to Israel. 
Richard Recd, do you have trip? You send it Israel to make set for targets in 
Israel. His mission in Pakistan from l!iracli intelligence, 'vfosad. to make 
interview to ask about when he was there. Also, he mention to them he was both. 

~r-11 ,,, .. -.~ 
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TSh'3Clf, 

He have relation with CTI\ people and were the Mosad. But he was not related to 
nJ Qaida at all or UBL. It is related to the Pakistan Mujahadeen group. Other 
operations mosily are some word I'm not accurate in saymg. I'm responsible hut 
if you read the heading history. The line there (lndicatini: to Personal 
Representative a place or Exhibit D-c J. 

REPR.ESENTArIVE: [Reading] "Also, hereby admit and aflinn without duress that l wa<; a 
responsible participant. principle planner, trainer, financier." 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDE\IT· 

DETANEE: 

PRESIDE~T: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

L>ETA!r--;EF.: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE 

I-or this is not nt:ci:ssary as I responsible, responsible. But with in these things 
responsible participant in finances. 

I understand. l wane to be clear. though. is you that were 1.hc author of that 
document. 

That's right. 

That it is true? 

Thars true. 

Alright. You may continue with your statement. 

Okay. I start in Arabic. 

Please. 

(through translator): In the name of God the most compassionate. the most m~·rciful. and if any fail to 
retaliation by way of charity and. I npologizc. I will star1 again. And if any fail 
tu 3utlge by the light of Allah has revealed. they arc no b<::ter thim wrong doers. 
unhclievers. and the unjust. 

DETAINEE: For this veri;e, I not take the oath. Take an oath is a part .1ryour Trihunal and I'll 
nt't accept it. To be or accept the Tribunal as to bt:, !"II u.:eept it That l'm 
accepting American constitution. American law or whatever you arc doing here. 
Tilis is why religiously I cannot accept anything you do lust to explain for this 
one. does not mean I'm not saying that J'm lying. When I not take oath does not 
mean rm lying. You know very well peoples take oath and they will lie. You 
know the President he did this before he just makes his oath and he lied. So 
sometimes when I'm not making oath does not mean I'm lying. 

l"S/.tSCI'' 
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I understand. 

Scc1ind thing. When I wrote this thing. I mean. the PR he told me that President 
may stop you al anytime and he don't like big mouth nor you to talk too much. 
To be within subject. So, I ·will try to be within the enemy combatant subject 

You can say whatt:vcr you·d like 10 say so long as it's rck\'ant to what we arc 
discussing here today. 

Okay. thanks. 

What I wrote here. is not I'm making myself hero. when I said I was responsible 
for this or that. But your arc military man. You know vc~y well I.here are 
language for any war. So. there are, wear~ when 1 admi11111g these 1hings I'm not 
saying I'm not did it. 1 did it hut this the language of an> war. If America they 
want 10 invade Iraq they will not send for Saddam roses <•r kisses they send for a 
bombardment This is the best way if I want. If T'm figh•mg for anybody admit 
10 them I'm American enemies. For sUie. I'm American ::nemies. tlsama bin 
I adcn. he did his hest press conference m American media. Mr. John Miller he 
been there when he made declaration against Jihad, against America. And he said 
ii is not no need for me now to make explanation of what he said hut mostly he 
said about American military presence in Arabian peninsula and aiding Israel and 
many things. So when we made any war against America we are jackals lighting 
in the nights. I consider myself. for what you arc doing. a religious thing as you 
consider us fundamentalist. So. we derive from rcligiou~ leading that we consider 
we and George Washington doing same thing. As consider George Washington 
as hero. Muslims many of them are considering Usama bm I .aden. He is doing 
same thing. I le is just fighting. He needs his independence. Even we think that. 
or not me only. Many Muslims, that al Qaida or Taliban •hey arc doing. They 
have been oppressed by America. This is the feeling of the prophet. So when we 
say we arc enemy combatant. that right. We arc. But I'm asking you again to be 
foir with many Uclainccs which arc not enemy combatan1. Because many of 
them have been unjuslly arrested. Many. nol one or two or three. Cause the 
dcfin:tion you whic.:h wrntl: l:vcn from my view it is not fair. Because tf l wus in 
the first Jihad times Russia. So I have to be Russian enemy. But America 
suppllrlcd me in this because I 'ni their alliances when I " ·1s lighting Russia. 
Same job I'm doing. I'm fighting. I was fightinr, there Hus!lia now I'm fighting 
America. So. many people who been in Afghanistan never live. Afghanistan stay 
in hut they not share Talihan or al Qaida. They been Rui;sian time and they 
cannot go back to their home with their corrupted 11.ovem:nent. They stayed there 
and when America invaded Afghanistan parliament. The .. had been arrest. They 
never have been with Taliban or the others. So many peC1ple consider them as 
enemy but they arc not. Because definitions arc very wide definition so pt!ople 
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they came after October of2002, 2001 When America invaded Afghanistan, they 
just arrive in Afghanistan cause the hear there enemy. They don't know what it 
means al Qaida or lJsama bin I .aden or Taliban. They dun 't care about these 
things. They heard they were enemy in Afghanistan the~ just arrived. /\s they 
heard first timi: Russian invade Afghanistan. They arrive they fought when back 
than they came. They don't know what's going on and Taliban they been head of 
government. You consider me even Taliban even the pn·sident of whole 
government. Many people they join Taliban because they are the government. 
When Kanai they came they join Kanai when come thev join whatever public 
they don't know what is going on. So, many Taliban fight even the be fighters 
because they _i ust because public. The govemment is Ta.iban then until now CIA 
don't have exactly definition well who is Taliban. who i:- al Qaida. Your Tribunal 
now are discussing he is enemy or not and that is one of your jobs. So this is why 
you find many Afghanis people, Pakistanis people even, they don't know what 
going on they just hear they arc fighting and they help Muslim in Afghanistan. 
Then what. There are some infidels which they came here and they have to help 
them. But tht!n there weren't any intend to do anything against America. Taliban 
:hcmsclvcs between Taliban they said Afghanistan which they never again against 
9111 operation. The rejection between senior of Taliban »f what al Qaida arc 
doing. Many of Taliban rejected what they arc doing. hen many Taliban, they 
not agree about why we are in Afghani!.1an. Some of thc:m they have been with 
us. Taliban never in their life at all before America invade them the intend to <lo 
anything aguinst America. Tht'y never been with al Qaida. Does not mean we arc 
here ns American now. They gave political asylum for many countries. They 
gave for Chinese oppositions or a North Korean but that Joes not mean they arc 
with them same thing many of Taliban. They harbor us as al Qaida docs not 
mean we are together. So, this is why J'm asking you to he fair with Afghanis 
am! Pakistanis and many Arabs which been in Afghanistan. Many of them been 
urtjusily. The funny story they been Sunni government they sent some spies to 
assassinate UBL then we arrested them sent them to Afghanistan/Taliban. 
Taliban put them into prison. Americans they came and Jrrest them as enemy 
combatant. They brought them here. So. even if they arc my enemy but not fair 
to be there with me. This is what I'm saying. The way c•fthe war. you know, 
very well, any country waging war against their enemy the language of the war 
are killing. If man and woman they be together as a maniage that is up to the 
kids. children. But if you and me, two nations. will be together in war the others 
are victims. This is the way of the language. You know 40 million people were 
killed in World War One. Ten million kill in World W:u You know that two 
million four hundred thousand be killed in the Korean W:u. So this language of 
the war. Any people who. when Usama bin Laden say I'm waging war because 
such such reason. now he declared it. But when you said I'm terrorist, I think it is 
deceiving pc(iplcs. Terrorists, enemy combatant. All thr:>e definitions as CIA 
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you can make whatever you want. Now. you told me when I ask about the 
witnesses, I'm not convinced that this related to the matter. lt is up to you. 
Maybe I'm con\.'inced but your are head and he [gesturing to Personal 
Representative] is not responsible, the other. because your are head of the 
committee. So. iinally it's your war but the problem is no definitions of many 
words. It would he widely definite that many people be <>pprcsscd. Because war. 
for sure. there will be victims. When I said I'm not happy thal three thousand 
been killed in America. I feel sorry even. I don't like to kill chilc.lrcn and the 
kids. Never Islam are, give me green light to kill people~. Killing, as in the 
Christianity. Jews. and Islam. arc prohibited. But there arc exception of rule 
when you arc killing people in Iraq. You said we have 111 do it. We don't like 
Saddam. But this is the:: way 10 deal with Saddam. Samt· thing you arc saying. 
Same language you use. I use. When you arc invading two- thirds of Mexican, 
you call your war manifost destiny. It up to you to call i1 what you want. But 
other side arc calling you oppressors. If now George Washington. If now we 
were living in the Revolutionary War and George Washington he being arrested 
through Britain. For sure he. they would consider him enemy combatant. B111 
American they consider him as hero. This right lhe any !{evolutionary War they 
will bc as George Washington or Rritain. So we are con!>1dcred American Army 
ha.~e-; which we have from seventies in Iraq. Also, in the Saudi Arabian, Kuwait, 
Qatar. and Bahrain. This is kind of invasion. bul I'm no1 here to convince you. Is 
not or not but mostly spet:eh is ask you to be fair with pc1lplc. I'm don't ha\.'c 
anything to say that I'm not enemy. This is why the lani:uagc of any war in the 
world is killing. I mean the language of the war is victims. I don't like to kill 
people. I feel very soriy they bt\:n killed kids in 9/11 . What I will do? This is 
the language. Somelime I want to make great awakeninµ between American to 
stop foreign policy in our land. f know American pcol?!c arc torturing us from 
seventies. fhis is you sec I Dc1ainee hold out wrists I I have been tortured by CIA 
Nobody will believe m1:. If I say here or there the hang me:, :;trip. for three 
months I know they talking about human righ1s. And 1 Know it is against 
American Constitution. against Amcm:an laws. But the~ said every law. they 
have exceptions, this is your had luck you been part of the exception of our laws. 
They got ha\e something to convince me bu1 we are doing same language. Ru1 
we arc saying we have Sharia law. but we have Koran. Whal is ~ncmy 
combatant in my language'! 

(through translator): Allah forbids you not Wlth regards to those who fight you not for your faith nor 
drive you out of your homes from dt:aling kindly and just!_y wi1h them. For Allah 
love those who are just. Thcrl' is one more sentence. Alljh only forbids you with 
regards to those who fight you for your faith und drive yc•u out of your homes and 
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support others in driving you out from turning to them for friendship and 
protection. It is such as tum to them in these circumstanc.:es that do wrong. 

So we arc driving from whatever deed we do we ask ahout Koran or 1 ladith. We 
arc not making up for us laws. When wc nc1..-<l Fatwa from the religious we have 
to go back to see what they said scholar. To sec what they said yes or not. Killing 
is prohibited in all what you call the people of the book. Jews, Judaism, 
Christianity, and Islam You know the Ten Commandments very well. The Ten 
Commandments are shared between all of us. We all arc -;crving one God. Then 
now kill you know 11 very well. But war language also we have language for the 
war. You have to kill. But you have lo care if unintenti1>nally or intentionally 
target if I have if rm not at lhe Pentagon. I consider it is •>kay. If I target now 
when we target in USA we choose them military target. L'COnomical, and political. 
So. war central victims mostly means economical target. So if now American 
they know URL. He is in this house they don't care about his kids and his. ·1bey 
will just bomhard it. They will kill all ofthern and they Jid it. They kill wife of 
Dr. Ayman Zawahiri and his two daughters and his son ir1 one bombardment. 
Ibey receive a report that is his house he. lie had not been there. They killed 
them The» arrested ffi) kids 111tentionally. They arc kids. They been arrested tor 
four months they had been ahused. So. for me l have pat:cnce. I know I'm not 
talk about what's come to me. The American have human right. So, enemy 
combatant itself, it flexible word. So I think God knows :hat many who been 
arrested. they been unjustly arrested. Otherwise. military throughout history 
know very well. fhcy don't war will never stop. War start from Adam when 
Cain he killed Ahel until now. It'..; never gorurn stop kilhng of people. This is the 
way of the language. American start the Revolutionary War then they startS lhe 
Mexican then Spanish War then World War One. World War Two. You read the 
history. You know never stopping war. This is life. Bui if who is enemy 
combatant and who is not? Finally. I finish statement. I'm asking you to be fair 
with other people. 

Docs that conclude your statement. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad? 

Yes. 

Alrif,!ht. 

f').:~'SCJi. 
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T!ii'SCI' 

OET AINEE QUESTION & ANSWER 

IJocs the Personal Reprc:;cntalivc have any questions for the Detainee based on 
his statement? 

PERSONAL 
REPRF.SENTATIYE:No. Sir. 

PRESIDENT 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

MEMBERS: 

PRESIDENT· 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PR.ES ID ENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

Docs the Recorder have any questions for the Detainee? 

No, Sir. 

Do either of the Trihunal members wish to question the Detainee? 

Nu. sir. Nothing further Sir. 

Alright. 

CLOSING UNCLASSIFIED SESSION 

All unclassified evidence having been provided to the Tnhunal, this concludes the 
open tribunal session. 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you shall he notified of the '! rihunal decision upon 
completion cif the review of these proceed hy the Combatant Status RevicY. 
Tribunal convening authority in Washington. D.C. If, the Trihunal determines 
that you should not he classified as an enemy combatant you will he released to 
your home country as soon a-; arrangements can he made If however, the 
Trihunal dctcnnincs your classification ac; an enemy combatant you may be 
cligihle for an Administrative Review Aoard hearing at :i future date. 

The Administrative Review Board will make an asscssm.:m of whether there is 
continued reason to believe that you pose a threat to the I :nitcd States or its 
coalition panncrs in the cingoing armed conflict against terrorist organizations 
such as al Qaeda nnd its affiliates an<l supporters or whether there are other 
factors hearing upon the need for continued detention. 

You will have the opponunity to he heard and to present relevant infonnation to 
the Administrative Review Board. You can present information from your family 
and friends that might help you at that Board. You arc encouraged to contact 
them as soon as possible to hegin to gather information that may help you. 

A rrulitary ofiicer will he assigned at a later dale 10 assis: you in the 
Administrative Review Board process. 
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ADJOURN OPEN SESSION 

PRESIDENT: The open st:ssion of this Tribunal ht:aring is adjourned. 

RECORDER: l'hc timt: is 2:43pm. The date is 10 March 2007. 

RECORDER· All Rise. 

!Tht: Tribunal withdrl'w from the hearing room! 

AUTHENTICATION 

I certify the material contained in chis transcript is a true and accurate verbatim rendering of the 
testimony and English language translation nfDetainee's words given durinc the open session of the 
Combatant Status Review Tribunal of!SN 10024 (b)(6) 

(b)(6) 

....,,..,...,..,,,,...--------,.....--'- -···-- ---
(b)(6) . CAPT JAGl USN 

..:.rs1:sc11 
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ISN 10024's Written Statement Regarding Alleged Abuse 

Quotes os Taken Verbatimfrom Detainu by Personal Representative Ill & Lin~uisl During 
Interview wiJh Detainee on Z1February2007 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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(b )( 1) 

~OTE: The Dct~inec requested that Personal Representative (l'R) #1 submil the following 
Detainee quotes to the President of the Combatant Starus Review Trit>un11l as a Detainee 
Exhibit. 

I. 

2. 

·•At the beginning of 11 September 2002, 
raided my house in Karachi. They took my compute1. my papers. and 

cveiylhing in lhe house-even the cunains and the salt in the kitchen. They nrres1ed my 
two kids (i.e .• Hamza. who is IO years old. and 7...aid. who is eight vears old). They were 
held for five months. They used them as bait so that I would tum myself in. I rejected to 
do that. Then I asked iftbey would relea~c my children and they 
said ii was decision to make. not theirs. After live monrhs, the kids were 
released. They dropped them off a1 a mosque/religious school." 
"On I March 2003 at 3 a.m .• they raided a house in Rawalpindi. P.Wsla.n. which was nol 
my house. Mc and two of my kids (i.e., Jalal, who is six years old. and Ibrahim, who is 
five years old) and l lawsawi were nll arrested by At the first night, 

(b)(3) NatSecAct 
man slarted 10 hil and punch me and threatened to torture my kids if I did not tell him 
where Usama bin Laden was. Then, he transferred me to the next room and then I started 
to hear my kids crying. The same man came back to tell me that I could stop what I'm 
hearing. They seized everythins in the house, none of which was related to me because it 
was not my house. I arrived at this house for the first lime the night before, on 28 Feb. at 
9 p.m." 

(b )( 1) 
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J . 

4. 

"TI1cn, I was t.zansforrcd to Before 
being trall$ferred here, two men lnid me down, took my pants off and stuck a suppository 
in me. After that, I fell I was sedated." 
"After arriving al they cul my clothes off with scissors and I believe tl1cy were 
CIA and military. Then, they got a doctor and checked me out. Then they shaved my 
head und mustache Then. they took me to a torture room. The same question wai; asked: 
'Where is Usama bin Laden?' Every time I said I did not know, they tortured me by 
dripping very cold water on my head while I was naked. Then thc:y took me to another 
room and hung 111e from my hands and poured cold water on me ~ hilc I w~ hangUJg. 
From time to time a Doctor came and checked my pulse By the fourth day, I was not fed 
solid food only Ensure. When I rejected to drink the Ensure. thry force-fed me through 
the rectum; then I got diarrhea. Tncrc was no bathroom-only a bucket. And every time 
I had to go 10 the bathroom. tl1cy would take me down, let me go •• u1d then hang me back 
up. All of 1his deprived me of sleep and every time l would fall asicep. the Guards would 
throw cold water on me. Two interrogators were female CIA and :alkcd to me while I 
was naked, and l believe the CIA inst3lled speakers in my cell where I was hanging and 
they played loud music. The only time the music stopped was when I was intc:nogalcd." 

5. "Then they took me to a third counuy. I suspect it was Defore departing for the 
third country. a Doctor gav~ me a pill which I swallowed. which scd111cd me for the 
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ISN J0024's Written Statement Regarding Alleged Abuse 

Quotes as Taken Vt:rbatimfrom Ddainu by Personal RtprestnJatlvt 11/ ll Li11guist DurinK 
Inurvit!w wiJlt Ddlli.rtu on 21 Ftbruary 2007 

whole trip. In this new location, they put me in a location widerground. The guards were 
wearine black head to toe, and then three people in black came io. but I could sec their 
faces and che guards were also in the room. The three men tortured me. They wanted to 
know where and when the next operation in the U.S./\. would harnen. They used the 
srune method of torture-I was naked, but they used a hose instead of a bucket. They 
moved rnc from time to time to a room where they laid me on a bed, tied me lo i I with 
belts. covered my face with a towel while naked, and they kept pe>uring water on the 
towel over my face so I couldn't breath. Then. when I got hystcri~al, I started trying to 
break free from the hand cuffs. They would tum a handle to mak1· the bed stand vertical 
immediately so my feel wouldn't touch the ground. This movement made me burp a lot 
to purge the water I swallowed. They did this three or four times ;ind the doctor stopped 
them to take my pulse. Then, they took me back to the room where I wa.c; hung and they 
laid me down on the floor and tied my feet and arms 10 the floor for about 15 minutes, 
then they hung me back from my arms from the ceiling. This went on for about a month. 
This lcf't scars on both my wrists." 

6. "Then I started talking co them when they realized that I did not know where UBL wa.c; 
and that their information wa<; wrong. Then they transferred me tn another room nalccd. 
They released my hand cuffs but not my feet cutTs. My feet we.re not freed until about 
two and Y1 years later." · 

7. "Then on Scrtcmbcr 2003, they uansferrcd me lo another cowitry-1 believe in 
In this country, they kept our clothes on, but our ti:ct shackled. The 

rooms were about four feet wide by rune feet long. The walls were ceramic, lhere was a 
hook in the ceiling and two hooks on the floor, and there was a dram in the floor. From 
time to time, I would hear other delainccs scrc.aming. /\nd now I !>clieve there was no 
more military people handling mc-<>nly CIA. The only time I ever was handled by 
Military people: was at and the Military never tonurcd us -0nly CIA tortured us. 
I stayed at this location until Octobct 2005. During this time, I was interrogated daily by 
different people from Washington under threat. lnc threat was: 'If we think you 're lying 
10 us, you're going back to the torture room.' Every interrogator that talkt.'<i to me: had 
three muscled men dressed in black from head to toe. All this time, I never once saw the 
sun or daylight. They intentionally gave us the wrong times for prayer." \. w,,.,,ftl.rii'fuo,· 

8. "On October 2005, they transferred me to a fourth country, I ~lllYc:.l!J . ~·=.:._y 
Living conditions improved. There wcre~huoks on U1e floor There was a bi.---'­
room: food was better; it had a gym. But suit we were never allowed 10 see the sun."' 

9. "On March 2006. they transferred me -1 hdit:\'C that was the 
country. llcre in the gym, there was nn opcninA iu 1hc roof so thi~ wns the first time I 
could see the sun since March 2003. /\gain. here the food was better, and we got a man 
on the floor to sleep on." (b )( 1) 

10. "On S September 2006, I was transferred here [to GTMO, Cuba)." (b)(3) NatSecAct 
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TOP SECRET/ 'IN Of ORN 

ISN 22 - Mohammed Nazir bin Lep issues in the 
evidence for Combatant Status Review Tribunal 

19 Mar 2007 by PR 3 

Mr President and members of the board. Upon review of the documen:s, I identify the 
following items. 

I _ -tis- ~ Exhibit R-10 is used to support paragraph i of the unclassified 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 
swnmacr. According to Exhibi! R-2 Gunawan went to ''militarv training'' in June 
or July 2000, and June 2001 at Cnmp Al Faruq, Afghanistan that included 
"training in explosives". Exhibit R-10 states that Gunawan fir.;t met "Bnshir" in 
June 2001 in Qandahar, Afghanistan. It also states that Gunaw.i!l lived with 
Bashir for the "duration of the basic explosive training course." l lowevcr. 
Gunawan had basic explosive training in June or July 2000 not JuRe 200 l. 

(b )( 1) 

2. ffS /J\IF) Masran and Bashir were roommates in November 2001 . 
According to Exhibit R-8, Masran was not identified as a leader of a suicide team 
until July or August 2002. There is no indication that he contacted the other 
identified members of the team. 

3. t5INf} Exhibit R-7 mcntion5 an al Q-c!ida ~micide plan for late .WOI to attack the 
tallest building in California without identifying the Detainee :c; part of this plan 
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